

“GOD BLESS AMERICA”

REGULAR MEETING

MARCH 18, 2015

A Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Belmar held on the above date at 6:00 PM at the Belmar Municipal Building, 601 Main Street.

PRESENT: Mayor Doherty, Councilman Brennan, Councilwoman Keown-Blackburn, Councilman Magovern, Councilwoman Nicolay, Borough Attorney Michael DuPont Esq., Business Administrator Colleen Connolly, and Borough Clerk April Claudio

The Borough Clerk stated “Adequate notice of this meeting has been provided to The Coast Star, the official newspaper of the Borough of Belmar, and the Asbury Park Press on March 2, 2015 notice of this meeting was prominently posted on the bulletin board of the Municipal Building and filed with the Clerk of the Borough of Belmar.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MOMENT OF SILENCE: Our troops and their families

SPECIAL PRESENTATION:

- Resolution Honoring St. Patrick’s Day Parade Grand Marshal and Deputy Grand Marshal

PUBLIC BIDS:

- Yoga at Second Avenue Beach: Minimum bid \$500 per a year

WORKSHOP DISCUSSION:

PETITIONS:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

REPORTS OF COUNCIL:

PUBLIC SESSION: Public Session on resolutions only on the Agenda. We will continue to have a Public Session at the end of this meeting.

RESOLUTIONS:

CONSENT AGENDA:

All matters listed in the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Borough Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

RESOLUTIONS BY CONSENT:

- RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF BILLS
- RESOLUTION AWARDING A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE 13TH AVENUE BOARDWALK CONCESSION #1
- RESOLUTION AWARDING A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE 13TH AVENUE BOARDWALK CONCESSION #2
- RESOLUTION URGING THE SWIFT PASSAGE OF ASSEMBLY BILL 4215 AND SENATE BILL 2775
- RESOLUTION AWARDING A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR USE OF A PORTION OF THE THIRD AVENUE BEACHFRONT FOR A SURF CAMP
- RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY AT AUCTION

- RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEE TO THE BELMAR FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AS PERMITTED BY N.J.S.A.40:54-9
- RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES FOR CERTAIN RECREATION PROGRAMS
- RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SUMMER TAXI OWNERS LICENSES AT AUCTION
- RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH MOSQUITO CONTROL DIVISION TO CONDUCT AERIAL MOSQUITO CONTROL OPERATIONS WITHIN THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR
- RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE BOROUGH CLERK TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH N.J. TRANSIT TO PROVIDE A SPECIAL BEACH TICKET
- RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING CERTAIN FEES FOR THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR
- RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CLERK OF THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR TO ADVERTISE FOR BID AND NOTICE TO BIDDERS FOR MARINE BAIT SHOP AT BELMAR MARINA

ORDINANCES:

ORDINANCE 2015-15

First Reading & Introduction

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER XIX, TRAFFIC, SECTION 19-40.1 PARKING METER ZONES AND REGULATIONS, OF THE REVISED GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR, IN THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH, NEW JERSEY

PUBLIC SESSION:

MEETING ADJOURNED:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY AT AUCTION

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Borough Council of the Borough of Belmar on this 18th day of March 2015 as follows:

1. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13(a), a sale at public auction shall be conducted by the Department of Public Works or designee at the Third Avenue Garage, 101 Third Avenue, Belmar, New Jersey of certain personal property: 17 lifeguard stands. Said items are no longer needed for public use and said sale shall take place on **Saturday, April 11, 2015 at 9:00 a.m.** prevailing time.
2. In each instance, the sale of personal property shall be made at public auction, item by item, with a minimum bid of \$100 each, and shall be sold in each case to the highest bidder for cash and the monies received from said sales shall be turned over to the Chief Financial Officer for deposit in the General Municipal Treasury.
3. Items are being sold in as is condition. Items can be inspected by contacting the Director of Public Works.
4. The Borough Clerk shall publish in a newspaper circulating within the Borough of Belmar, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, and a notice of the aforementioned sales of the personal property, listing the items for sale, shall be posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Complex.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote:

Councilmembers:	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-

**RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SUMMER TAXI OWNERS LICNESES AT
AUCTION**

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Borough Council of the Borough of Belmar on this 18th day of March 2015 as follows:

1. Pursuant to Borough Ordinances, Chapter 21, a sale at public auction shall be conducted by the Municipal Clerk or designee at the Municipal Building, 601 Main Street, Belmar, New Jersey, of ten (10) Summer Taxi Owner's Licenses. Said sale shall take place on **Thursday, April 9, 2015 at 2:00 p.m.** prevailing time.
2. In each instance, the sale of each taxi owner's license shall be made at public auction, license by license, with a minimum bid of \$400 each, and shall be sold in each case to the highest bidder for cash and the monies received from said sales shall be turned over to the Chief Financial Officer for deposit in the General Municipal Treasury. No person or company may hold more than one license.
3. Each Summer Taxi Owner's License would be valid from May 15th to September 15th for the year 2015. Each license is for the operation of no more than five (5) vehicles.
4. The highest bidder of each license will be required to complete an application and submit proof of insurance and vehicle registration. Upon submission of documents and all monies each taxicab driver that works for said licensed owner shall be required to complete an application and submit appropriate fees for a Summer Taxi Driver's License.
5. All license holders and taxicab operators will be required to be processed by the Belmar Police Department which includes fingerprinting and a background check.
6. The Borough Clerk shall publish in a newspaper circulating within the Borough of Belmar, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, and a notice of the aforementioned sales of the personal property, listing the items for sale, shall be posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Complex.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote:

Councilmembers:	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-

**RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH MOSQUITO
CONTROL DIVISION TO CONDUCT AERIAL MOSQUITO CONTROL
OPERATIONS WITHIN THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR**

WHEREAS, the Monmouth County Board of Chosen Freeholders, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 26:9-27 et seq. has elected through its Mosquito Control Division to perform all acts necessary for the elimination of mosquito breeding areas and/or to exterminate mosquitoes within the county; and

WHEREAS, the County has instituted an Integrated Pest Management Program consisting of surveillance, water management, biological control, and chemical control to exterminate the mosquito population within the county of Monmouth; and

WHEREAS, prior to conducting aerial dispensing operations over a designated “congested area” the County is required, pursuant to Federal Aviation Administration Regulation (FAR Part 137.51), to secure prior written approval from the governing body of the political subdivision over which the aircraft is to be operated; and

WHEREAS, the Borough of Belmar is designated as a “congested area” by the Federal Aviation Administration and the County has requested that this governing body consent to its proposed aerial dispensing operations.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows:

1. The Governing Body hereby authorizes the County of Monmouth Mosquito Control Division or its agent to apply pesticides by aircraft for mosquito control in certain areas of the municipality designated by the County as being either larval mosquito habitat or areas harboring high populations of mosquitoes constituting either a nuisance, a health hazard, or both within the understanding that:
 - a. The County shall utilize pesticides, application equipment and aircraft that are approved for aerial applications by the applicable Federal (USEPA) and State (NJDEP) agencies; and
 - b. Such operations will be performed in compliance with applicable Federal and State regulations; and
 - c. The County will notify the police department of each municipality over which aerial pesticide operations are planned prior to commencement of such operations.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption. Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSENT	ABSTAIN
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

I, April Claudio, Clerk of the Borough of Belmar, hereby attest that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Governing Body of the Borough of Belmar held on _____ day of _____ 2015.

RESOLUTION No. 2015-

**RESOLUTION AWARDING A LEASE AGREEMENT
FOR THE 13TH AVENUE BOARDWALK CONCESSION #1**

WHEREAS, the Borough of Belmar authorized and advertised for a Lease Agreement for use of a portion of the 13^h Avenue boardwalk for a food concession, with an open public bid by auction on March 3, 2015; and

WHEREAS, after receipt of the bids on March 3, 2015 the Borough of Belmar wishes to award the Lease to the highest bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Belmar that, the Lease is awarded to:

Trent Colanduoni
229 Hillside Drive
Neptune, NJ 07753

on the bid of \$7,600 per a month. The Lease is for a term of five months.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, Borough Clerk, Borough Attorney and other necessary Borough Officials are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Lease and all other documents and undertake all actions reasonably necessary to effectuate the award of the Lease herein.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSENT	ABSTAIN
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION No. 2015-

**RESOLUTION AWARDING A LEASE AGREEMENT
FOR THE 13TH AVENUE BOARDWALK CONCESSION #2**

WHEREAS, the Borough of Belmar authorized and advertised for a Lease Agreement for use of a portion of the 13^h Avenue boardwalk for a food concession, with an open public bid by auction on March 3, 2015; and

WHEREAS, after receipt of the bids on March 3, 2015 the Borough of Belmar wishes to award the Lease to the highest bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Belmar that, the Lease is awarded to:

Carducci's
1607 Ocean Avenue
Belmar, NJ 07719

on the bid of \$8,000 per a month. The Lease is for a term of five months.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, Borough Clerk, Borough Attorney and other necessary Borough Officials are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Lease and all other documents and undertake all actions reasonably necessary to effectuate the award of the Lease herein.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSENT	ABSTAIN
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-

**RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CLERK OF THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR TO
ADVERTISE FOR BID AND NOTICE TO BIDDERS FOR MARINE BAIT SHOP AT
BELMAR MARINA**

WHEREAS, the Borough of Belmar, County of Monmouth, in the State of New Jersey, (hereinafter referred to as the “Borough”) has determined that a portion Marina Administration Building (hereinafter referred to as the “Property”) is not needed for public use and is not otherwise dedicated or restricted pursuant to law; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Belmar that the Borough Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to advertise for bids to lease said Property for concession areas in the Asbury Park Press upon the following terms and conditions:

The property to be leased consists of the Marina Bait & Tackle Shop for sale of diving or fishing equipment and supplies, ice, bait and tackle, and a boat livery. The minimum bid for this lease is \$30,000 per year. A bid deposit of \$3,000 is to be submitted no later than prior to the beginning of Public Auction on April 7, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. in cash, certified check or money order payable to the Borough of Belmar is required. The lease document is available for inspection with the Borough Clerk during regular business hours.

The lease shall be made to the highest bidder by open public bidding at auction. The term of the lease is from the signing of the lease to December 31, 2015 with an option to renew for an additional one year term.

The Mayor and Borough Council reserves the right to in any event reject the highest bid, and if the highest bid is rejected to reject all bids.

The successful bidder shall be required to execute the form of lease available from the Borough Clerk during Borough business hours, the terms and conditions of said lease being incorporated in this Resolution and Notice to Bidders as if set forth fully herein.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the advertisement for bids shall conform to the requirements of N.J.S.40A:12-14(a) by the insertion of the Notice to Bidders in the Asbury Park Press for publication on March 24, 2015 and March 31, 2015; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the bidding at auction shall take place on April 7, 2015 at the Municipal Complex, Council Chambers, 601 Main Street, Belmar, New Jersey, at 6:00 p.m.; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Borough Council shall accept or reject the bid or bids no later than the next regular meeting of the Borough Council scheduled for April 21, 2015 otherwise said bids shall be deemed to have been rejected.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSENT	ABSTAIN
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION No. 2015-

**RESOLUTION AWARDING A LEASE AGREEMENT
FOR USE OF A PORTION OF THE THIRD AVENUE BEACHFRONT
FOR A SURF CAMP**

WHEREAS, the Borough of Belmar authorized and advertised for a Lease Agreement for use of a portion of the Third Avenue beachfront for a surf camp, with an open public bid by auction on February 17, 2015; and,

WHEREAS, after receipt of the bids on February 17, 2015 the Borough of Belmar wishes to award the Lease to the highest bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Belmar that, the Lease is awarded to:

Shaun McGrath
Summertime Surf LLC
404 Ocean Avenue Unit 4
Belmar, NJ 07719

on the bid of \$500 per a year.

The Lease Term is from the bid award through September 30, 2015 with an option to renew for three (3) additional one (3) year terms.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, Borough Clerk, Borough Attorney and other necessary Borough Officials are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Lease and all other documents and undertake all actions reasonably necessary to effectuate the award of the Lease herein.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mr. Brennan				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION NO 2015-

**RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEE TO
THE BELMAR FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY AS PERMITTED BY
N.J.S.A.40:54-9**

BE IT RESOLVED by the Borough Council of the Borough of Belmar that the following appointments by Mayor Doherty for Trustees of the Belmar Free Public Library are approved and confirmed:

<u>Members</u>	<u>Term Expiring</u>
Patricia Hutchinson	December 31, 2017

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE BOROUGH CLERK TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH N.J. TRANSIT TO PROVIDE A SPECIAL BEACH TICKET

WHEREAS, New Jersey Transit has developed a Summer Shore Promotion which provides for round trip train transportation and a special Beach ticket with a reimbursement value of \$3.50, and

WHEREAS, the Borough Council desires to participate in this summer’s promotion.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Borough Council that the Borough Clerk be and is authorized to execute an agreement with New Jersey Transit to participate in the 2015 Summer Services Promotion.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this authorization is in conformance with Subsection 18-2.5h of the “Revised General Ordinances of the Borough of Belmar” designating this as a special promotion to encourage public access to the beaches.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote:

Councilmembers:	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION 2015-

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING CERTAIN FEES FOR THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor & Council of the Borough of Belmar, that the following fees be set and shall hereby be in effect until replaced with a future resolution adopted by the Mayor & Council:

BEACH CHAIR RENTAL - \$5
BEACH UMBRELLA RENTAL - \$5

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption. Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION 2015-

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES FOR CERTAIN RECREATION PROGRAMS

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor & Council of the Borough of Belmar, that the following fees for Recreation Programs be set and shall hereby be in effect until replaced with a future resolution adopted by the Mayor & Council:

8 Week Summer Camp

\$500 - Belmar/Lake Como Residents & St. Rose Students

\$600 - Non-Residents

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption. Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

RESOLUTION 2015-

**RESOLUTION URGING THE SWIFT PASSAGE OF ASSEMBLY BILL 4215 AND
SENATE BILL 2775**

WHEREAS, the Jersey Shore Partnership is a non-profit advocate of shore protection and beach replenishment to protect our coastline; and

WHEREAS, the Jersey Shore Partnership is circulating a petition and seeking assistance in getting Assembly Bill 4215 and Senate Bill 2775 ratified; and

WHEREAS, these two bills seek to increase the Shore Protection Fund from \$25 million to \$50 million to meet the anticipated costs of protecting our communities from future devastating coastal storm damage; and

WHEREAS, the current funding of \$25 million/year has not been increased since its original legislation in 1992.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR THAT the Mayor and Council hereby support Assembly Bill 4125 and Senate Bill 2775; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution be forwarded to the members of the New Jersey State Assembly, the New Jersey State Senate, and the Governor of State of New Jersey.

offered the above resolution and moved its adoption.

Seconded by and adopted by the following vote on roll call:

Council members:	AYES	NAYS	ABSENT	ABSTAIN
Ms. Keown-Blackburn				
Mr. Magovern				
Mr. Brennan				
Mrs. Nicolay				
Mayor Doherty				

Adopted:

ORDINANCE 2015-15

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER XIX, TRAFFIC, SECTION 19-40.1 PARKING METER ZONES AND REGULATIONS, OF THE REVISED GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE BOROUGH OF BELMAR, IN THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH, NEW JERSEY

WHEREAS, the Borough of Belmar Mayor and Council wish to amend certain sections of Chapter XIX, Traffic.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Borough of Belmar, County of Monmouth, New Jersey, that Chapter XIX, Traffic, of the Borough of Belmar Revised General Ordinances are hereby amended and supplemented as follows:

SECTION I. Chapter XIX is hereby amended and supplemented as follows:

19-40.1 Parking Meter Zones and Regulations.

The provisions of this subsection shall regulate the parking of vehicles within parking meter zones as hereinafter designated; the designation, use and operation of parking meters; and the payment of fees prescribed herein.

a. *Designation of Parking Meter Zones.* The streets or parts of streets described are hereby designated as parking meter zones.

b. *Definitions.* As used in this subsection:

Parking meter or kiosk shall mean a mechanical device located upon a public street, boardwalk or sidewalk in a place regularly designated as a parking meter space, as hereinafter defined, which device shall record a certain number of minutes or hours by ~~the use of a clock mechanism~~ determining the period of time for which parking privileges may be granted upon the payment of the required fee in such device.

Parking meter space shall mean a certain designated and marked-off section of the public street within the marked boundaries where a vehicle may be temporarily parked and allowed to remain for such period of time as paid for. ~~the parking meter attached thereto may indicate.~~

c. *Installation of Parking Kiosks~~Meters~~.* Parking ~~kiosks~~ meters shall be installed in all parking meter zones during such times as the Mayor and Council may direct by ordinance, provided that no parking meters or kiosks shall be installed in any area where parking is prohibited pursuant to N.J.S.A. 39:4-138.

d. *Parking Meter Fees and Time Limitations.* Parking ~~meters~~ kiosks shall require payment of the fee of two (\$2.00) ~~one (\$1.00)~~ dollar to permit a vehicle to be parked for a period of one (1) hour.

e. *Hours of Operation.* All parking meters or kiosks installed on Ocean Avenue shall be in operation every day from 8:00 a.m. through 7:00 p.m.

f. *Marking of Spaces and Meters; Legal Parking Periods.* The parking meter zones established by this section shall be designated by appropriate markings outlining individual parking spaces and a parking ~~kiosk meter~~ shall be installed at or in the vicinity of the parking ~~meter~~ space. Each parking meter or kiosk installed shall indicate by a proper legend the legal parking time and fee established by this subsection and on the expiration of such period shall indicate illegal or overtime parking.

g. *Operation and Use of Parking Meters.* No person shall park a vehicle in any parking meter space where parking meters or kiosks have been installed during the times indicated in paragraph e. above, without payment of the appropriate fee.

h. *General Regulations and Prohibitions.*

1. No person shall cause a vehicle to remain in or to be parked in a parking meter space when the ~~meter displays a device or signal indicating the~~ period of time for such parking has expired.

Additions are indicated by underline; and, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

2. It shall be unlawful for any person to cause, allow, permit or suffer any vehicle registered in his, her or its name to be parked in any parking meter space herein designated or to be hereafter designated in violation of the provisions of this subsection.
 3. It shall be unlawful to park any vehicle across any line or marking designating a parking meter space or to park any vehicle in any way that the same will not be wholly within a parking meter space as designated by the lines or markings.
 4. It shall be unlawful to deposit in any parking meter a slug, device or metallic substitute, or any other substitute, for a coin or paper currency of the United States of America or to use any stolen or invalid credit card, debit card or similar non-cash method payment.
 5. It shall be unlawful to deface, tamper with, damage, unlawfully open or willfully break, destroy or impair the usefulness of any parking meter installed under the provisions of this subsection.
- i. *Collection and Disposition of Fees.* Belmar Parking Utility shall designate such collectors and methods as are necessary to properly collect payments deposited into the parking meters. All moneys collected shall be turned over to the Treasurer of the Borough of Belmar for deposit in the proper account of the Borough.
- j. *Enforcement.* It shall be the duty of the members of the Belmar Parking Authority to enforce the provisions of this section.

<i>Name of Street</i>	<i>Sides</i>	<i>Limits</i>
Ocean Avenue	East and west	From the northern boundary line of the Borough to the southern boundary line of the Borough.

- k. *Penalties.* In addition to any other penalty provided in this Chapter, any vehicle which has been ticketed for a violation of this section, and which remains continuously in the same metered parking space for more than twenty-four (24) hours, will be towed at the vehicle owner's expense.

SECTION II. If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision so adjudicated and the remainder of the Ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective.

SECTION III. All Ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with or in conflict with the ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency